
Technical Advisory Committee for Aeronautics 
Minutes 

Wednesday, January 20, 2010 
 

1:00 PM to 4:00 PM 
Sacramento International Airport – Directors Conference Room 

6900 Airport Boulevard 
Sacramento, California 

 
http://www.catc.ca.gov 

 
1. Welcome and Introductions 
Chris Kunze, TACA Chair, convened the meeting at 1:02 PM. TACA member attendees 
made self introductions.   
 
TACA Members Present: 
Harry Krug, Chris Kunze, John Pfeifer and Tom Weil 
 
TACA Members Absent: 
Michael Armstrong, Dan Burkhart, Robin Hunt, Sandy Waters and Alex Wilcox 
 
Commission:    
Commissioner Carl Guardino.  Commissioner Joe Tavaglione was absent. 
 
Commission Staff:  
Robert Chung 
 
Department Staff: 
Gary Cathey and Terry Barrie.  
 

 
2. Approval of October 20, 2009 Minutes 
 
TACA members asked that the typographical error in “3a. Caltrans Aeronautics Division” 
be corrected.  The word “compare” should be “compared”.  The corrected sentence reads as 
follows: “California is getting a number of systems for testing and is in the forefront 
compared to other states.” 
 
Mr. Krug moved to approve the October 20, 2009 minutes with the recommended change.  
Mr. Pfeifer seconded the motion.  Motion carried 4-0.  

 
3. Status Reports and Upcoming Actions 
 
3a. Caltrans Aeronautics Division 

Mr. Cathey explained that the Aeronautics Division is not processing applications for 
funding due to the budget language that suspended the programs under the division 

TACA Minutes Page 1 of 4 January 20, 2010
  

http://www.catc.ca.gov/


purview.  He noted that applicants were still asked to submit applications so that the 
Aeronautics Division could establish the continuing need in the programs.   

With regards to Next Gen, Mr. Cathey noted that there was a conference coming up in 
Washington D.C., on May 10.  The conference was to give states a better understanding of 
how to apply for federal Next Gen grants. He was not sure Caltrans would be able to attend 
because of the recent Channel 13 report that implied a lot of state travel to conferences was 
a boondoggle.  Mr. Cathey also noted, as an example of Next Gen, that ITT Corporation 
was working on installing ADSB (Automatic Dependent Surveillance-Broadcast) on state-
owned properties.  Lastly, Mr. Cathey noted that the Aeronautics Division’s consultant was 
working on a Land Use Plan and Aeronautics Handbook.  The draft should be out in early 
June 2010. 
 
3b. CTC Actions 
 
Mr. Chung noted that the TACA Chair presented to the Commission its annual report.  As 
part of annual report, the Commission asked about the budget’s impact on aeronautics.  The 
Commission was very concerned about the suspension of the aeronautics program and 
diversion of Aeronautics Account revenues to the General Fund.  Accordingly, the 
Commission directed staff to prepare a letter for the Commission Chair’s signature to the 
Legislature asking it to lift the suspension of the aeronautic grant programs, not raid the 
Aeronautics Account in the upcoming budget cycle and that the previous transfers from the 
Aeronautics Account to the General Fund are repaid as a loan.   
 
Mr. Chung reported, along with Mr. Cathey, on FAA issues.  Both noted that Ms Robin 
Hunt could not attend.  Mr. Chung noted that she indicated that Congress was working on a 
jobs bill.  It was likely that $500 million could be available through the normal AIP 
process.  Mr. Cathey noted that FAA wanted TACA members to know that the Part A AIP 
funds would go out immediately without waiting for Part B. 
 
Mr. Chung then discussed the aeronautics portion of the draft regional transportation plan 
(RTP) guidelines.  He explained the purpose of the RTP guidelines, the recent passage of 
AB 32 (green house gas emission reduction) and SB 375 (land use, transportation and 
sustainable communities strategies) and how aeronautics fits into the RTP guidelines.   
 
TACA reviewed the aeronautics portion of the draft RTP guidelines and, besides some 
editorial remarks, recommended that the Department and CTC staff incorporate the 
following changes:   
 

• The reference to aviation’s contribution to economy and jobs should be referenced 
back to the source document and the year that the numbers were developed. 

 
• The 2008 enplanements of 10,000 or more may change.  The draft guidelines 

should include a contact number or website for the user to contact the Division of 
Aeronautics as enplanements change over time.  The enplanements should be listed 
alphabetically by county and then by airport within the county.   

 

TACA Minutes Page 2 of 4 January 20, 2010
  



• Military installations should also be included and discussed as part of the RTP. 
 

• Clarifying language that discussing aviation’s future needs should be done for 
short- and long-term future needs.   

 
3c. TACA - Operations 
 
Mr. Kunze asked that TACA members consider whether or not TACA needed to make 
changes in its operations.  For example he noted that the Southern California Association of 
Governments very seldom attends the TACA meeting because of travel constraints.  Did 
the membership need to be expanded?  Mr. Kunze noted that Mr. Peter Hill recently 
resigned, due to his increasing commitments as a city councilmember.  TACA members 
discussed the type of aviation members that should be on TACA.  TACA members also 
discussed the types of issues that should be considered in 2010.  For example, the use of 
drones was increasing and the impact on the system should be considered.   
 
Next Mr. Kunze noted that the Southern California Association of Governments, where he 
is chair of the SCAG aeronautics technical advisory committee, wrote a letter to the FAA 
regarding southern California’s interest in Next Gen satellite-based air transportation 
applications being started the SCAG region.  The SCAG region would like to be an “early 
adopter” of the technology because of the near and mid-term benefits, such as relieving 
airport capacity. 
 
4. Proposed State Budget  
 
Mr. Chung stated that Mr. Greg Pochy was not available to discuss the State Budget.  Mr. 
Chung and Mr. Cathey gave an overview of the budget.  Mr. Cathey noted the state 
operations would increase with the end of the three-day furlough.  Mr. Chung noted the 
capital outlay and the local assistance would decrease.  Financing costs would increase 
from $109 million to 904 million.  The key point was a proposed gas tax swap that would 
eliminate the sales tax on gasoline and diesel and replace those revenues with a 10.8-cent 
increase in the excise tax.  The net result would be that gas would be 6 cents per gallon 
cheaper, lower General Fund revenues and lower Proposition 98 guarantee.  Aviation 
should be concerned with how the proposal may change as it goes through the legislature. 
 
5.  Legislation 
 
Mr. Pfeifer discussed the passage of SB 481 the bird kill bill that became effective January 
1, 2010.  He noted that SB 737, airport land use commissions, failed in committee because 
it was perceived as an unfunded state mandate.  He noted that the author may introduce 
another bill by the February 19 deadline and try to get a one-year bill passed.   
 
Mr. Pfeifer then discussed land uses where electric generating plants are located adjacent to 
airports.  He noted the thermal plumes from the plants are invisible but can disrupt the 
flight path of an incoming plane.  Mr. Terry Barrie noted that information identifying the 
size of the problem is needed so that TACA can decide if thermal plumes are an issue or 

TACA Minutes Page 3 of 4 January 20, 2010
  



not.  He noted that in the past the Department had used secondary sources to identify where 
airport/land use issues existed. 
 
6. Division of Aeronautics Plan for the Upcoming Year 
 
Mr. Cathey discussed the Division’s efforts to get the local airports to report on the impact 
that the suspended programs were having.  He stated the Division wanted to know about 
specific project that are delayed or deferred. 
 
7. Revenue and Expenditure Survey for the Annual Report 
Mr. Terry Barrie provided a status of the Department’s work in updating the information 
needed.  The Division is has pieces missing.  Mr. Barrie discussed how the numbers could 
be extrapolated from past data to at least provide a reasonable number where the data was 
incomplete.  Mr. Pfeifer expressed his concern again that this base information is very 
important to the aeronautics community, especially when the community want to bring 
funding issues to the Legislature’s attention.  Mr. Cathey stated that the Division would 
bring a draft to the March meeting. 
 
8. Other Business 
 
Mr. Kunze noted that he would like to bring the Southern California Association of 
Governments in to present aviation planning in southern California.  Also, he would like to 
have TSA come and explain airport vulnerability assessment and discuss the availability of 
grants to improve security. 
 
9. Adjournment 
 
Chair Kunze adjourned the meeting at 3:15 PM. 

TACA Minutes Page 4 of 4 January 20, 2010
  


